
CHEROKEE COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

              
 

Pre-meeting Work Session 
 

MARCH 1, 2011 
3:00 p.m. 

Cherokee Hall   
 

MINUTES 
 
Chairman Ahrens began at 3:12 p.m. saying he was again going to dispense with the 
motivational reading as they had just had an hour and a half meeting on the Aquatics 
Center, and that was motivational enough for him. All board members were present.  
 
1. Discuss ethics ordinance draft-Chairman  

The Chairman began this discussion saying that he had his copy of the latest version, as 
did Commissioner Bosch. He stated that generally even though it went from one 
extreme to another; this still contained most of the Cobb County version. The Chairman 
then said that so long as there was no timeline pending, there could still be further email 
communication.  

2.  Discuss transportation projects for submission to GDOT by 30 March 

Chairman Ahrens said he wanted to start with this topic first and to announce the intent 
to vote at the next meeting on the list of projects that will be sent forward; even though 
Commissioner Johnston would not be in attendance at that meeting. The Chairman said 
that last night he had attended the Woodstock City Council meeting and did the 
presentation of what all was discussed at the last Work Session. There were a couple of 
questions, very simple to answer. Mayor Henriques took the opportunity to again to 
mention the straightening Neese Road in the same context as they probably don’t need 
the Arnold Mill Bypass. He had congratulated the council on getting the Rope Mill 
Interchange under way, and told them he thought the reason it had been brought 
forward was the consistency of the message from all the local leaders.  

The other item he wanted to mention was an email received from Dr. Jackie McMorris, 
saying that there was nothing in this project list related to Transit from the County; the 
Chairman said in some discussions, he had at ARC and GDOT, on fixing some of the 
kinks in close-in transportation, i.e. currently our system can’t take anyone across the 
Cobb County border. So the thought was a call center approach, or getting calls placed 
to the right provider location.  



He asked Dr. McMorris to come up to discuss. Dr. McMorris said for the past 2 or 3 
years, the focus had been on human services transportation for seniors, which is the 
County’s fastest growing population and the disabled, lower income, etc.  

She said the ARC had asked the operators of the metro area transit systems to do a 
study on the human services transportation and the consensus had been that they all 
receive calls which they cannot fulfill, and what could be done to alleviate this problem.  

Dr. McMorris went on saying that as of last Friday’s meeting; all of the operators and 
ARC had been trying to come up with a project for the “unconstrained list”. And all of 
the operators said the same thing, that there needs to be a centralized call center where 
someone could call and get an answer to their question without being passed around, 
via telephone. She said that the ARC had asked the operators to come back and submit 
the question to their boards, about a possible regional project for this, get the approvals 
needed and then the ARC would submit it to the Round Table.  

Chairman Ahrens asked if this would take care of the question about getting someone 
from Cherokee to Cobb County, say to Kennestone Hospital or the doctors in that area. 
Dr. McMorris said that along with Cherokee, both Cobb County and Bartow County had 
spoken recently about putting together a feasibility study to assess the needs in their 
own county and determine how to address the needs jointly. There was also discussion 
regarding the current voucher program and the possibility of using something similar to 
that. Dr. McMorris said that either taxi cabs or independent contractors providing this 
service would be much cheaper than the transit system could do it.  

3. Discussion of Regular Agenda items   

Before the Chairman began this topic, he said he had a couple of things to mention. First 
he asked Commissioner Bosch to go over her activities from yesterday, down at the 
legislature. Commissioner Bosch stated that she had spent the entire day at the Capitol, 
lobbying to get the Motorcycle Safety legislation in the right hands. She said that since 
both the House and Senate were meeting then, there were a lot of people to see and 
she had found someone to sponsor the bill. She stated that Matthew Hicks from ACCG 
was a lot of help, introducing her around and generally it was a very productive day.  

The Chairman said that just for information, he had the latest Gebcorp/ACCG Pension 
Fund quarterly report; as of December 31, the fund was up 14% for last year and just 
touched $700 million dollars. Next the Chairman mentioned that the Development 
Authority had chosen a name for their business park on Highway 92 and Dupree Road. 
The subcommittee formed to consider names had recommended “Cherokee 75” as one 
of the names; and the board had chosen this name.  

Before getting to the agenda, Commissioner Hubbard asked to thank the Fire Dept. and 
911 for their response during yesterday and last night’s weather events. Chairman 
Ahrens also asked Bryan Reynolds and Chief Gunnin how the “Guns and Hoses” event 
went on this past Saturday. Bryan stated that the Guns had won, but that both teams 
had raised about $2400 for their charities.  

                



Chairman Ahrens started the discussion on the agenda with the Announcement, going 
over the single one of the 2011 Senior Olympics including some of the events that would 
be offered.  
 
Then the Chairman asked if they were ready for Margaret to come up and discuss still 
more changes to the Permitted Uses Table and the Zoning Ordinance; hopefully this 
item could finally come to a vote at the meeting tonight.  
 
Margaret told the board members that they would find a complete draft Ordinance as 
well as the text and the tables in their notebooks; she didn’t know if everyone had a 
chance to review it. She had prepared a Summary of the changes to the Table and the 
Text from the original draft that was available in November. She had heard from 
Commissioners Johnston and Bosch, but not so much from the others.  
 
Commissioner Johnston still had questions as to the 20% rule in the Corporate Park 
designation, but he was much more comfortable than when this had first started. 
Commissioner Bosch said that it was 20% of the acreage. She stated that these 
revisions were meant to be for 20 years out; she didn’t like to limit them so much now 
when she knew that there could be amendments made later, at the time of need.  
 
There was discussion regarding utilities and sewage treatment facilities and Margaret 
said that this was all limited to HI. A question came up about wood chipping operations, 
and the fact that it was not mentioned at all; it was decided to put this in HI as well. 
Then when it seemed there were no other issues, Commissioner Hubbard said he had 
received an email from the president of the Farm Bureau, who said that he would like a 
chance to look over this document. It was determined that it was available on the 
Planning and Zoning web site under Proposed Ordinance Changes, and as the public 
hearing had been held in November and there had been no comments then or since, this 
was not an issue that would necessarily hold up the vote on the revisions if there was a 
motion tonight.  
 
After the Chairman asked the Clerk about the appointment to the Highland Rivers Board 
and she pointed out where the information could be found, then he asked Commissioner 
Johnston about his item.  
 
Commissioner Johnston said that last year he had accepted all but the 0.37 miles of 
Cherokee Gold Trail for county maintenance and there have been some improvements. 
It has been requested by all the residents on the road except one property owner that 
will not donate the required right-of-way, that the balance is taken over and to skip over 
that portion. So he was going to accept that portion on his one mile road program.  
 
Commissioner Bosch said on her item, it was just to more closely follow the language 
used in the original amendment from 2009.  
 
Next Commissioner Nelms spoke about Taylor Thompson and his senior project, telling 
about the fishing tournament and how impressed he and his wife were with this young 
man.  
 



After this, the Chairman asked Mr. Cooper to review the Consent Agenda items. There 
were very few questions on this portion. Mr. Cooper then reviewed the items under his 
portion of the agenda, including the amendments. There was some discussion on item 
10. And on the first amendment which was the donated acreage for the green space 
program.  
 
Then on the amendment for the Blankets Creek Park project, there was some discussion 
as to the requirement and necessity of the request for the environmental assessment.  
 
The Chairman said when Mr. Cooper had completed his portion that he had one more 
quick item; and he mentioned a letter he had received from DCA regarding the NSP 
funding, which had been turned down by this board already. The letter stated there were 
still funds available in this NSP fund, if there was any interest in pursuing the funds, the 
deadline was April 15th.  
 
When there was nothing else, Commissioner Hubbard made a motion to adjourn to 
Executive Session at 4:43 p.m. to discuss personnel issues, pending litigation and 
property acquisition. Commissioner Bosch seconded and the motion was unanimously 
approved.  
                
These Minutes were approved at the regular meeting on March 15, 2011. 
 


